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BOARD’S REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-2021 
 

To, 

The Members, 

 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 87

th 
Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company 

together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31
st 

March, 2021. 
 

I. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

During the year under review, performance of your Company as under: 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 
 

Particulars Year ended 31st 

March 2021 
Year ended 31st 

March 2020 

Total Income 495.76 1339.63 

Expenses: 
  

a) Depreciation& amortization expenses 402.89 494.76 

b) Finance Cost 772.03 723.06 

c) others1044.19 402.15 1044.19 

Profit/(loss) before Tax (1081.31) (922.38) 

Profit/(loss) after Tax (1081.31) (922.38) 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year 7.84 1.76 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (1073.48) (920.62) 

Earning per share( Basic) (42.89) (40.53) 

Earning per share (Diluted) (42.89) (40.53) 
 

COVID-19 

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic in March'2020 has continued beyond expectations and wrecked 

havoc on business. Hospitality sector has been the worst affected owing to complete disruption in domestic and 

international travel. There has been unprecedented slowdown of economic activity throughout the world and is  

impacting operations of the businesses, by way of interruption in supply chain, unavailability of personnel, restriction on 

domestic and international travel, increased costs of maintenance and upkeep, rise in costs of input & services etc. 

The restriction on business activities has still not gone away and threat of lock down still looms large due to fear of third 

wave hitting the world. Your Company has been actively engaged and proactively taking all the necessary steps 

required to be taken to deal with the pandemic in the areas of ,employee – health and safety, business strategy, 

optimizing finances, operations and technology. This response has reinforced stakeholder's confidence and many of  

them have expressed their appreciation and gratitude for the timely response under most challenging conditions. 
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II. OPERATIONS FOR THE PERIOD AND FUTURE OUTLOOK: 

(i) OPERATIONS FOR THE PERIOD: 

The operations of the Company for FY 20-21 were badly hit owing to COVID-19 pandemic that has 

affected the business globally. The global pandemic COVID-19 has affected the hospitality & club 

business the hardest due to which there has been a great impact on revenues for the entire year. . The 

management has tried to capture every business opportunity and maximize the revenues within the 

constrained and restrictive business scenario prevalent due to various Government restrictions.  

However, Management wishes to assure the shareholders that  in spite of host of challenges, the 

company has been taking innovative measures to keep the business going and revive the revenue 

streams consistently. 

(ii) FUTURE OUTLOOK: 

Due to Lockdown & various restrictions imposed by the Government since March'20 owing to Covid 19 

pandemic, all the operations of the company have been severely affected & come to a virtual standstill. 

While the revenues have fallen to a trickle, fixed cost pressures continue to mount. The Company is  

looking to develop alternate revenue streams but the initiatives have not met with any big success due 

to overall challenging and depressed social & business environment. The Management is taking all  

efforts to keep the facilities in good condition and retain the team as far as possible so that it can kick  

start the operations with minimum time lag once the Unlock guidelines take effect. The Management is 

committed to take all such measures that will strengthen the Company and its' operations in years to  

come. The Management wishes to place on record the fact that, the company has still not received  

approvals for future construction of certain facilities, for which the Company is consistently pursuing  

with the appropriate authorities and is hopeful of some positive development in time to come. The  

business of the company is largely dependent on the overall economic growth and general business 

sentiment prevalent in the market. However, the Management is positive in its' outlook and is confident 

of generating better revenues in the post Covid-19 times. 

The liquidity position of the company is very poor, but company is making every efforts to meet its 

commitments to maximum extent possible. The company is also looking closely to various business  

opportunities which will help the Company to restart its' operations with full strength. The company  

expects to secure further emergency credit loan under ECLGS 3.0 as COVID relief package 

announced by the Government of India to support operations. 

III. DIVIDEND: 

The Chairman informed the Board that in view of current year losses and accumulated losses it would be 
prudent, not to recommend payment of dividend on Equity Share Capital of the Company for the Financial Year 

ended 31
st 

March, 2021. The Board after discussion on the matter, decided not to recommend any dividend on  

Equity Share Capital of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31
st 

March, 2021. 

IV. REVENUE: 

The Company has earned gross revenue of Rs. 495.76 lakhs in the year 2020-21 under review. The Company 
has a negative EBITDAof Rs 1081.31lakhs &PAT of a loss of Rs.1081.31lakhs. 

V. AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES: 

In view of the current year's losses the Board of the Company does not recommend transfer of any amount to  
reserves. 
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VI. SHARE CAPITAL: 

Authorized share Capital 

There is no change in Authorized share capital of the company for the Financial Year 2020-2021. 

VII. PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS: 

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the 

notes to the financial statements provided in the Annual Report. 

The Register of Loan, Guarantee, Security and Investment is maintained in Form MBP-2 under section 186 of 
the Act, 2013 which is available for inspection during the business hours on all working days. 

VIII. FIXED DEPOSITS: 

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public during the financial year ended March 31,  

2021. 

IX. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

There were no contract(s) / arrangement(s) / transaction(s) entered into by your Company with its related 
parties, during the year under review as per the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Act read with Companies  

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulations 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

Particulars of contract or arrangements made with related parties referred to section 188 (1) of the Companies 

Act, is prescribed in Form AOC -2 as“ANNEXURE 1” to Board's Report. 

X. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

(i) DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION: 

In terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of your Company, 
Mr. Jaydeep Mehta (DIN: -00252474), Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation at the 

Eighty Seventh Annual General Meeting as he is holding office for the longest period and his  

appointment shall be liable to retire by rotation. 

Mr. Jaydeep Mehta,has confirmed his eligibility and willingness to accept the office of the Director of 

your Company, if confirmed by the Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the opinion of  

your Directors Mr. Jaydeep Mehta has requisite qualifications and experience and therefore, your  

Directors recommend that the proposed resolution relating to the re-appointment Mr. Jaydeep Mehta 

be passed. 

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel: 

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company: 

A) Mr. Rajesh M. Loya, Whole Time Director 

B) Mr. Chetan J. Mehta, Executive Director – CFO 

C) Mr. Manoj C. Patade, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mr. Manoj Patade (CS & Compliance Officer) has resigned w.e.f. 14
th 

August 2021 and Ms.Vedashri 

Chaudhari has been appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company 

w.e.f 14
th 

August 2021. 

(iii) Declaration Of Independence By Independent Director: 

All the Independent Directors have given their declarations stating that they meet the criteria of 

independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b)of Securities and 
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Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 ('the  
Listing Regulations'). In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions of independence as 

specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations and are independent of the management. 

XI. Director's Responsibility Statement: 

Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls and compliance systems established and maintained by 

the Company, the work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial Auditors including Audit of Internal  

Financial Controls over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors and the reviews performed by 

Management and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion  

that the Company's Internal Financial Controls were adequate and effective during the Financial Year 2020-21. 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company  

hereby state and confirm that: 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed  
along with proper explanations relating to material departure, if any; 

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021; 

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in  

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(iv) they have prepared the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 on a going  

concern basis. 

(v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal  

financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively. 

(vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and  

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

XII. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO: 

Considering the nature of activities of the Company, the information required under Sub-section (3)(m) of Section 

134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014to be disclosed relating to the 

conservation of energy and technology absorption is provided as “ANNEXURE 2” to the Board's Report. 

There is no foreign technology involved/ absorbed. During the year under review, the Company has neither 
earned any foreign exchange nor incurred any expenditure in Foreign exchange. 

XIII. BOARD'S DIVERSITYAND EVALUATION: 

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board in its success. We believe that a  
truly diverse Board will leverage difference in thought, perspective, knowledge, skill, regional and industry  

experience which will help us retain our competitive advantage. 

At present, your Company has Eight Directors and pursuant to the Regulation 17(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations your Company complies with this requirement. In 

terms of the Listing Regulations, your Company conducts the Familiarization Program for Independent  

Directors about their roles, rights, responsibilities in your Company, nature of the industry in which your  

Company operates, business model of your Company, etc., through various initiatives. The details of the same  

are displayed on the website of the Company. 
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The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the  

basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information 

and functioning, etc. 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee 

members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee  

meetings, etc. 

The Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of the entire Board, Committees and all the 
Directors based on the parameters specified by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The exercise  

was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the functioning of the 

Board and its Committees. Individual Directors were evaluated separately on basis of their respective  

designations and roles. 

XIV. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD: 

During the financial year 2020-21, the Board of Directors met Eight times as follows: 21
st 

July,2020 30
th 

July 

2020,19
th 

August 2020,15
th 

September 2020,12
th 

November 2020,22
nd 

January 2021,9
th 

February 2021,17
th 

March 2021. Table 1 below gives the attendance record of the Directors at the Board meetings and the last  

Annual General Meeting held on 15
th 

October, 2020. The intervening gap between any two meetings was within 

the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 

Name of Directors Designation No. of Board 
Meeting attended 

during 2020-21 

Attendance of AGM 
held on 15th 

October, 2020 

Number of Committee 
positions in mandatory 

committees 

Number of 
Shares held 

    Member Chairman  

Mr. Jashwant Mehta 

(DIN: 00235845) 

Non Executive 
Director 

8 Yes - - 4,32,220 

Mr. Chetan Mehta 

(DIN: 00235911) 

Executive Director 
& CFO 

8 Yes 1 - 4,32,220 

Mr. Rajesh Loya 

(DIN: 00252470) 

Whole Time 
Director 

8 Yes 2 - NIL 

Mr. ManeeshTaparia 
(DIN:00267558) 

Non- Executive 
Independent 

Director 

8 Yes - 2 NIL 

Ms. Dhwani Mehta 

(DIN: 07105522) 

Non- Executive 
Women Director 

8 Yes 1 - NIL 

Mr. Gautam Shah 

(DIN: 00271794) 

Non- Executive 
Independent 

Director 

8 Yes 2 _ NIL 

Mr. Amit Shah 

(DIN: 07306728) 

Non- Executive 
Independent 

Director 

8 Yes 1 1 2405 

Mr. Jaydeep Mehta 

(DIN: 00252474) 

Executive Director 8 YES - - 4,32,225 
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XV. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 

Currently, the Board has three committees: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,  

Stakeholder's Relationship Committee. For the Financial year 2020-2021, the below are the details of the 

Committee, as per the applicable provisions of the Act and Rules: 
 

Name of Committee Composition of the Committee No. of Meetings held 

Audit Committee Mr. ManeeshTaparia, Chairman 

Mr. Amit Shah 
Mr. Rajesh Loya 

 
4 

Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee 

Mr. ManeeshTaparia, Chairman 
Mr. Gautam Shah 
Mr. Chetan Mehta 

 
4 

Stakeholder’s Relationship 

Committee 

Mr. Amit Shah, Chairman 

Mr. Rajesh Loya 
Mr. Gautam Shah 

 

4 

XVI. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 

Currently, the Board has three committees: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,  

Stakeholder's Relationship Committee. For the Financial year 2020-2021, the below are the details of the 

Committee, as per the applicable provisions of the Act and Rules: 

XVII. AUDITORS 

a) STATUTORYAUDITORS: 

In accordance with Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, M. S. Mandlecha& 
Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.: 129037W) has been appointed as a statutory auditor of  

the Company for a period of Five years commencing from the conclusion of 83
rd 

AGM on August 14, 2017 till  

the conclusion of the 88
th 

AGM in the year 2022, at a remuneration as may be approved by the Board for the 5  
years. 

The requirement for the annual ratification of Auditors appointment at the Annual General Meeting has been  

omitted pursuant to Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 notified on 7
th 

May, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is 

being proposed for ratification of the appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

During the year, the statutory auditor has confirmed that they satisfy the independence criteria required under 

Companies Act, 2013 and Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

b) SECRETARIALAUDITOR: 

Due to sad demise of Mr.H B Upasani ,our Secretarial Auditor ,the Company appointed Ms.Zankhana Bhansali, 

Practicing Company Secretary,(FCS No: 9261) as a Secretarial Auditor to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the  

Company for the Financial Year 2020-21, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 

there under. 

The secretarial audit report for F.Y. 2020-21 forms part of the Annual Report as “ANNEXURE 3” to the Board's  

Report. 

The Auditors' Report and the Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31
st 

March, 2021 do not 

contain any qualification or reservation or adverse remark. 

XVIII. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS: 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 
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concern status and Company's operations in future. 

The details of the pending cases with various authorities are mentioned in the notes to Financial Statements. 

XIX. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

As per the General Circular issued by The Ministry of Corporate Affairs as on March 5, 2021, under Companies 

(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2021, the requirement of attaching the extract of the  

annual return with the Board's Report shall be in Form No. MGT.9. has been omitted in Rule 12 of the said rule. 

The Extract of Annual Return for the F.Y. 2020-21 is available on the Company's Website link i.e. 

www.apteindia.com 

XX. WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

The Company is having website i.e. www.apteindia.com and annual return of Company has been published on 

such website. Link of the same is given below: https://corporate.clubemerald.in 

XXI. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL: 

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal financial control as per Section  

134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board has laid down policies and processes in respect of internal financial controls and such internal 

financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively. The internal financial controls covered the 

policies and procedures adopted by your Company for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of business 

including adherence to your Company's policies, safeguarding of the assets of your Company, prevention and 

detection of fraud and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of  

reliable financial information. 

XXII. COST RECORD: 

The provision of Cost audit as per section 148 is not applicable to the Company. 

XXIII. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company  

Secretaries of India. 

XXIV. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

Your Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with requirements of the Sexual  
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. This policy applies to  

all categories of employees of the Company, including permanent management and workmen, temporaries,  

trainees and employees on contract at their workplace or at client sites. Internal Complaints Committee(s)  

(ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The cases reported to 

such Committee(s) are investigated by the respective Committee(s) members and the detailed report thereon  

is presented to the Board of Directors on a regular basis. During the year under report, your Company did not  

receive any case of sexual harassment and hence as at March 31, 2021, there were no pending cases of anti - 

harassment in your Company. 

XXV. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE COMPANY: 

There are no significant or material orders which were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 

impact the going concern status and the Company's Operations in future. 

There was sub-division of shares from Rs.10 paid up to Rs.5/- paid up equity shares record date being 

25.05.2021. 

http://www.apteindia.com/
http://www.apteindia.com/
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The Board of Directors for the benefit of the Company decided to change the Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA) 

from Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd to Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt.Ltd. w.e.f (Board Meeting) Date 22
nd 

January 
2021. 

XXVI. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

a) Information as per Rule 5(1) of Chapter XIII, Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

The remuneration and perquisites provided to our employees including that of the Management are on a  

par with industry levels. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee continuously reviews the 

compensation of our senior executives to align both the short-term and long-term business objectives of 

the Company and to link compensation with the achievement of measurable performance goals. 

Remuneration paid to Board of Directors of the Company: 
 

Name of Director Title Remuneration in 
financial year 

2019-2020 

Remuneration in 
Financial Year 

2020-2021 

No. of shares 
held in the 
Company 

Mr. Jashwant Mehta Non-Executive Director NIL NIL 4,32,220 

Mr. Chetan Mehta Executive Director and 
Chief Financial Officer 

NIL NIL 4,32,220 

Mr. Rajesh Loya Whole Time Director NIL NIL NIL 

Mr.ManeeshTaparia Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Rs.4,000/- 
(Sitting fees) 

Rs.4,000/- 
(Sitting fees) 

NIL 

Ms. Dhwani Mehta Non-Executive Director NIL NIL NIL 

Mr. Gautam Shah Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Rs.4,000/- 
(Sitting fees) 

Rs.4,000/- 
(Sitting fees) 

NIL 

Mr. Amit Shah Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Rs.5,000/- 
(Sitting fees) 

Rs.4,000/- 
(Sitting fees) 

2,405 

Mr. Jaydeep Mehta Executive Director NIL 
:
 NIL 4,32,225 

Remuneration paid to the Key Managerial Personnel’s of the Company 

Name of KMP Title Remuneration in 
financial year 

2019 - 2020 

Remuneration in 
Financial Year 

2020 - 2021 

No. of shares held in 
the Company 

Mr. Rajesh Loya Whole time Director NIL NIL NIL 

Mr. Chetan Mehta Director and Chief 
Financial Officer 

NIL NIL 4,32,220 

Mr. Manoj Patade Company Secretary 
and Compliance 

Officer 

 
3,60,000 p.a. 

 
2,42,594 p.a. 

 
NIL 

During the Financial Year 2020-2021 the Company had an average count of 63 employees on the payroll of the 
Company. 

a) Information as per Rule 5(2) of Chapter XIII, Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

The information required under Section 134 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment & 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules for the year ended 31

st 
March, 2021 is not applicable to the 

Company as none of the employee is drawing remuneration more than the limits presently specified under 
the said rules. 
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XXVII. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

Pursuant to Section 135(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board's Report should disclose the responsibility  
undertaken and committee constituted for the same. 

However, your Company has not earned sufficient profits for the financial year 2020-2021 and thus does not 
require complying with the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility. 

XXVIII. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

The Company recognizes that risk is inherent to any business activity and that managing risk effect ively is 
critical to the immediate and future success of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has established a Risk 
Management Policy which has helped in overseeing the risks, management of material business risks and also 
helps in internal control of the Company. The Policy is displayed on the website of the Company,  
www.apteindia.com under the heading Policies of Company. 

The Management of your Company is vigilant about their responsibility of overseeing and reviewing that the 
risk that the organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, property,  
regulatory or any other risk have been defined and assessed. There is adequate risk management  
infrastructure in place capable of addressing those risks. 

XXIX. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and is in process of establishing a  
mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has thus formed a vigil mechanism and 
Whistle blower policy under which the employees are free to report violations of the applicable laws and  
regulations and the Code of Conduct. 

The reportable matters would be disclosed to the Audit Committee. The Policy is displayed on the website of the 
Company, www.apteindia.com under the heading Policies of Company. 

XXX. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 

Industrial Relations remained cordial throughout the year under review. 

XXXI. CONDOLENCES: 

The Company wishes to place on record & conveys heartfelt condolences to the family members of Late Shri 
H.B Upasani (Company Secretary & Secretarial Auditor. His gracious presence and honest advice shall be  
missed & the Company shall always remember with gratitude the efficient services, expert advices and 
continuous support given by him over the years. 

XXXII. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedicated services of the employees of your  
company at all levels. 

 

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors, 

Emerald Leisures Limited 

(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) 
 
 

 
 

 
Date : 03.09.2021 

Place : Mumbai 

Sd/- 

Mr. Rajesh Loya 

Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00252470 

Sd/- 

Mr. Chetan Mehta 

Director & CFO 

DIN: 00235911 

http://www.apteindia.com/
http://www.apteindia.com/
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“ANNEXURE 1” 

Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of 

section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1 Details of Contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: N.A. 

2 Details of Contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis as follows: 
 
 

Name of the related party Amit V. Shah Maneesh Taparia Juhu Resorts & Development Pvt Ltd. 

Nature of relationship Independent Director Independent Director Common Directorship 

Nature of 

contracts/arrangements/transactions 

Annual Membership Fee received 

for Club Membership 

Amount received for Banqueting 

and Room Services 

Amount received for Outlet Sales, 

Room Services provided and amount 

paid for Room Services received 

Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements/transactions 

Continuing nature transaction Continuing nature transaction Continuing nature transaction 

Salient terms of the contracts or 

arrangements or transactions including 

the value, if any 

- - - 

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any - - - 

Amount paid as advances, if any NIL NIL NIL 

 

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors, 

Emerald Leisures Limited 

(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) 
 
 
 

 
Sd/- 

Mr. Rajesh Loya 

Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00252470 

 
Sd/- 

Mr. Chetan Mehta 

Director & CFO 

DIN: 00235911 
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(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) “ANNEXURE 2” 
 
 
 

DISCLOSURE RELATED TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
 

It is Company's continuous and consisted endeavor to operate in safe and environmentally responsible manner for the long- 
term benefit of all its shareholders 

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

1. Steps taken for conservation of energy: 

a. Operation of Air Conditioning plant with Air Handling Unit (AHU) 

b. Water meter installed to monitor & conserve water conservation 

c. Rain Harvesting System implemented to conserve water in ground 

d. CFL lamps being replaced by LED lamps in phased manner 

e. Sensor based ON/OFF lighting system in all public areas 

f. Electric Load Balancing System for efficient use of power. 

g. Use of Capacitors to maintain power factor 

h. Use of hydro pneumatic system for pumping water 

i. Use of Thermal storage technology For Air Conditioning for efficient use of power 

 
 

2. Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of energy: 

i. Heat exchange system installed to absorb heat released from air conditioning unit, which is utilized to make 

hot water without using any boiler or electric heater 

ii. Use of Bore Well for using rain harvested water and minimum use of BMC supplied water. 
 

 

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors, 

Emerald Leisures Limited 

(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) 
 
 
 

 

Sd/- 

Mr. Rajesh Loya 

Whole Time Director 

DIN: 00252470 

Sd/- 

Mr. Chetan Mehta 

Director & CFO 

DIN: 00235911 
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To, 

Form No. MR-3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31

ST 
MARCH 2021 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 
Emerald Leisures Limited 
(Formerly Known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited") 
Club Emerald Sports Complex, 
Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, 
Near MangalAnand Hospital, 
Chembur, Mumbai - 400071. 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

practices by M/s Emerald Leisures Limited (CIN L74900MH1948PLC006791) (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit 

was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 

expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my electronic verification (since physical verification was not possible on account of Pandemic of COVID -19 and 

Lockdown ) of the M/s. Emerald Leisures Limited's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives electronically during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during 

the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31
st 

March 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 

also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 

to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined electronically the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31
st 

March 2021 and found them to be in order, according to the provisions of: 

(I) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder: 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBIAct') :- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit period) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 

Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to 

the Company during the Audit period) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the 

Company during the Audit period) and 
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the Company 

during the Audit period) 

(vi) Other laws as per the representation made by the Company are as follows; 

 Rules and regulations laid down by BMC I MCGM.

 IOD-CC (Commencement Certificate) to commence work &have received part OC (occupation Certificate) for the 

phase-I.

 Eating House License from The Police department

 FSSAI License from the State Government for serving food at our place under Food & Safety Standards Act, 2006.

 FL-3License for serving Liquor under State Excise Department of Maharashtra Government. FL-III under State Excise 

Department of Maharashtra Government.

 Shop & Establishment Registration under Maharashtra Shop & Establishment Act,1948.

 The Employees Provident Funds &Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

 Employees State Insurance Act, 194 8

 Maharashtra State Tax On Professions I Trades Act, 1975

 Goods & Service Tax, 2017

 Maharashtra Value Added Tax Act, 2002

 Income Tax Act, 1961 and Indirect Tax Laws

 Eating House Licenses - Issued By Health Department Of Municipal Corporation Of Greater Mumbai

 Eating House Grade Certificate Issued By Public Health Department Of Brihanmumbai Mahanagarpalika

 Electricity Act, 2003

 No Objection Certificate Issued By Mumbai Fire Brigade Under Municipal Corporation Of Greater Mumbai

 Eating House Registration With Chembur Police Station Under Mumbai Police,1951

 No Objection Certificate Issued by Mumbai Fire Brigade Under Municipal Of Greater Mumbai For Piped Natural Gas

 Sexual Harassment Act, 2013.

 Environmental Management and Pollution Control Act, 1994

I have also examined the compliance with regard to the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and general meetings:- 

are generally complied. 

(ii) The Company is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE Limited) henceSecurities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 :- are generally complied. 

During the period under review 

(a) During the period under review the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

 The Peer Review of the Statutory Auditor has not been received by the Company 
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 In respect of the Peer Review of the Statutory Auditor of the Company, the Management has responded that the 

Statutory Auditors has initiated the process for obtaining Peer Review Certificate in 2019 itself and is still in process 

due to Covid-19 Scenario. 

I further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 

and Independent Directors including women Director. 

No Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors took place during the year under review. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 

least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 

items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of 

the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further Report that: 

(i) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013 for borrowing powers, the 

Company has increased the borrowing powers to Rs. 250 Croers which was duly approved by Members in the 86
th 

AGM. 

(ii) The Company has allotted 3,00,000 Equity Shares on Preferential basis to the Promoter on 09
th 

January, 2020 [Fully paid up 

convertible warrants converted into 300000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up, which is under process of listing on 

BSE Limited. (To be listed) . 

(iii) We further report that a case filed in the Court of Learned Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate 11th Court 

Kurla by a shareholder basically against the erstwhile promoters of the Company, wherein the Company has  

been made a party to the matter. The Company has filed appropriate response to the matter. 

I further report that during the audit period there were no instance of: 

i. Public/Right/Preference issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity, etc. 

ii. Redemption / buy-back of securities 

iii. Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc. 

iv. Foreign technical collaborations. 
 

 
 
 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 3

rd 
September 2021 

Zankhana Bhansali 
Practicing Company Secretary 
FCS No: 9261 
CP No.: 10513 
UDIN: F009261C000890438 

 

Office: 
B-302, Kusum Bharati, 
Opp. TATA S.S.L., Dattapada Road, 
Borivali (E), 
Mumbai-400066 

 
 

 

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report. 
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To, 

The Members, 

Emerald Leisures Limited 
(Formerly Known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited") 
Club Emerald Sports Complex, 
Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, 
Near Mangal Anand Hospital, 
Chembur, Mumbai 400071. 

 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to 
express as opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, followed by me, provide as 
reasonable basis of my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws and regulations 
and happening. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards are the 
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 

 
 
 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 3

rd 
September 2021 

Zankhana Bhansali 
Practicing Company Secretary 
FCS No: 9261 
CP No.: 10513 
UDIN: F009261C000890438 

 

 

Office: 
B-302, Kusum Bharati, 
Opp. TATA S.S.L., Dattapada Road, 
Borivali (E), 
Mumbai-400066 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and ScheduleV Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015) 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Emerald Leisures Limited 
(Formerly Known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited") 
Club Emerald Sports Complex, 
Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, 
Near Mangal Anand Hospital, 
Chembur, Mumbai 400071 

 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosure received from the Directors of Emerald 
Leisures Limited (Formerly Known as "Apte Amalgamations Limited") having CIN L74900MH1948PLC006791 and having 
registered office at Club Emerald Sports Complex, Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, 
Mumbai 400071 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company') produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this  
certificate in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C sub Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and according to the verifications including Directors Identification number (DIN) 

status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanation furnished to us by the Company and its officers , 
we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the financial year ending on 31st 
March 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or such other statutory Authority. 

 
 

Sr. No. Name of The Director DIN Date of appointment in the Company 

1. JASHWANT BHAICHAND MEHTA 00235845 12/08/2010 

2. CHETAN JASHWANT MEHTA 00235911 14/08/2015 

3. RAJESH MOTILAL LOYA 00252470 12/08/2010 

4. JAYDEEP VINOD MEHTA 00252474 07/10/2016 

5. MANEESH TAPARIA 00267558 29/09/2015 

6. GAUTAM CHANDRAKUMAR SHAH 00271794 25/09/2015 

7. DHWANI JAYDEEP MEHTA 07105522 13/02/2015 

8. AMIT VARDHMAN SHAH 07306728 08/10/2015 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment or continuity of every Director on the Board of above referred Company is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion as stated above based on our 

verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

Zankhana Bhansali 
Practicing Company Secretary 
FCS No: 9261 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 3

rd 
September 2021 

 CP No.: 10513 
UDIN: F009261C000890460 

Office: 
B-302, Kusum Bharati, 
Opp. TATA S.S.L., Dattapada Road, 
Borivali (E), 
Mumbai-400066 
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(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) 

FORM NO. MGT- 9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on Financial Year ended on 31.03.2021 

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules,2014. 

 
I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

“ANNEXURE 4” 

 

1. CIN L74900MH1948PLC006791 

2. Registration Date 03/12/1948 

3. Name of the Company EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

4. 
Category/Sub-category of 

the Company 

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES / INDIAN NON-GOVERNMENT 
COMPANY. 

 
5. 

Address of the Registered office 

& contact details 

CLUB EMERALD SPORTS COMPLEX, PLOT NO. 366/15, 
SWASTIK PARK, NEAR MANGAL ANAND HOSPITAL, CHEMBUR, 
MUMBAI – 400 071, MAHARASHTRA. 

6. Whether listed Company YES 

 
7. 

Name, Address & contact details 

of the Registrar & Transfer Agent, 

if any. 

PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PVT. LTD. 
UNIT NO. 9, SHIV SHAKTI IND. ESTT., 
J. R. BORICHA MARG,LOWER 

PAREL (E), MUMBAI – 400 011 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing10% or more of the total 

turnover of the Company shall be stated) 
 

Sr. No. Name and Description of main products 

/ services 

NIC Code of the 

Product/service 

% to total turnover of the 

Company 

1 Club Emerald Sports Complex 99965# 100 % 

# As per National Industrial Classification (NIC) list 2015. 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES- NONE 
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:- 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name and Description of main products / 

services 

NIC Code of theProduct/ 

service 

% to total turnover of the 

Company 

N.A. 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

A) Category-wise Share-Holding 
 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 

the year 

[As on 1st April-2020] 

No. of Shares held at the 

end of the year 

[As on 31-March-2021] 

% Change 
during the 

year 

Demat Physical Total %of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % 

of Total 

Shares 

A. Promoters          

(1)Indian          

a)Individual/HUF 1728885 0 1728885 69.070 1728885 0 1728885 69.070 0.00 
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b) Central Govt - - - - - - - -  

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - -  

d) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - -  

e) Banks /FI - - - - - - - -  

f) Anyother - - - - - - - -  

Total shareholding of 

Promoter(A) 

1728885 0 1728885 69.070 1728885 0 1728885 69.070 0.00 

          

B. Public Shareholding          

1.Institutions - - - - - - - - - 

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks /FI 0 4480 4480 0.18 0 4480 4480 0.18 0 

c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - - 

d) State Govt(s)  - - - - -    

e)Venture 

CapitalFunds 

- - - - - - - - - 

f)Insurance 

Companies 

625 0 625 0.025 - - - - -0.03 

g)FIIs - - - - - - - - - 

h)Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i)Others (specify) - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 

(B)(1):- 

625 4480 5105 0.204 0 4480 4480 0.18 -0.03 

2.Non- 

Institutions 

         

a) BodiesCorp. - - - - - - - - - 

i)Indian 233657 35520 269177 10.754 233017 35570 268587 12.19 -0.03 

ii)Overseas - - - - - - - - - 

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - - 

i)Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

upto Rs. 1lakh 

85092 390082 475174 18.983 75767 388197 463964 18.535 -0.45 

ii)Individual 

shareholders 

holdingnominal share 

capital in excess of Rs 
1 lakh 

24414 0 24414 0.975 24414 235 24649 0.98 0.00 
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c)Others (specify) HUF - - - - 11990 60 12050 0.48  

NonResident 

Indians 

300 45 345 0.014 300 45 345 0.02 0.00 

Overseas Corporate 

Bodies 

- - - - - - - - - 

Foreign Nationals - - - - - - - - - 

Clearing Members - - - - 140 - 140 0.01 0.01 

Trusts - - - - -     

Foreign Bodies- D R - - - - -     

Sub-total (B)(2):- 343463 425647 769110 30.73 345628 424107 769735    30.75 0 

TotalPublic 

Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 

344088 430127 774215 30.930 345628 428587 774215    30.93 0 

C. Sharesheld 

byCustodian for 

GDRs& ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

GrandTotal 

(A+B+C) 

2072973 430127 2503100 100.00 2074513 428587 2503100 100.00 0 

 

B) Shareholding of Promoters- 
 

 
 

Sr. 
No. 

 
 

Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year 

Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 

shareholding 

during the year Noof 

Shares 

%of total 

Shares of 

the 

Company 

%of Shares 

Pledged/ 

encumbered to 

total shares 

No.of 

Shares 

% oftotal 

Shares ofthe 

Company 

% of Shares 

Pledged/ 

encumbered to 

total shares 

1 JAYDEEP VINOD 
MEHTA 

432225 17.27 33.89 432225 17.27 33.89 - 

2 CHETAN 
JASHWANT MEHTA 

432220 17.27 33.89 432220 17.27 33.89 - 

3 JASHWANT 
BHAICHAND MEHTA 

432220 17.27 33.89 432220 17.27 33.89 - 

4 NIKHIL VINOD 
MEHTA 

432220 17.27 33.89 432220 17.27 33.89 - 
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C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is nochange): 

 

 
Sr. 
No 

 

 
Shareholder's 
Name 

Shareholding at the Beginning of the Year Shareholding at the end of the Year  
% of total 
Shares of 

the 
Company 

No. of Shares 
at the 

beginning of 
the Year 

% of the 
Shares of 

the 
Company 

 
 

Date 

 
Increasing/ 

Decreasing in 
shareholding 

 
 

Reason 

No. of 
Shares at 
the end of 
the Year 

1 
JAYDEEP VINOD 
MEHTA 

 
432225 

 
17.27 

01-04-2020 
    

 
Closing Balance 

   
31-03-2021 

- No change  
432225 

 
17.27 

         

 
2 

CHETAN 
JASHWANT 
MEHTA 

 
 

432220 

 
 

17.27 

 
01-04-2020 

    

 Closing Balance   31-03-2021 - No change 432220 17.27 
         

 
3 

JASHWANT 
BHAICHAND 
MEHTA 

 
 

432220 

 
 

17.27 

 
01-04-2020 

    

 Closing Balance   31-03-2021 - No change 432220 17.27 
         

4 
NIKHIL VINOD 
MEHTA 

 
432220 

 
17.27 

01-04-2020 
    

 Closing Balance   31-03-2021 - No change 432220 17.27 

 
D) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs andADRs): 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name No. of Shares at 

the beginning of 

the year (01-04- 

2019)/ end of 

the year (31-03- 

2020) 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

Company 

Date Increasing/ 

Decreasing in 

shareholding 

Reason No. of 

Shares at 

the end of 

the year 

31-03-21 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

Company 

 
1 

AYAY COMMODITY 
SERVICES PVT LTD 

230115  
9.193 

01-04-2020     

 
Closing Balance 

   
31-03-2021 

 
- 

 
No Change 

 
230115 

 
9.193 

         

 
2 

NAHALCHAND 
LALOOCHAND 
PRIVATE LTD 

 
30915 

 
1.235 

 
01-04-2020 

    

 
Closing Balance 

   
31-03-2021 

-  
No Change 

 
30915 

 
1.235 

         

3 
MAHENDRA 
GIRDHARILAL 

 
13593 

 
0.543 

 
01-04-2020 

    

 Closing Balance   31-03-2021 - No Change 13593 0.543 

         

4 MEENA SURESH        

 TREVADIA 10821 0.432 01-04-2020     

 Closing Balance   31-03-2021 - No Change 10821 0.432 
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5 
RAHUL ANANTRAI 
MEHTA 

 
9,044 

 
0.361 

 
01-04-2020 

    

 Closing Balance   31-03-2021 - No Change 9,044 0.361 

         

6 
KAVITA TUSHAR 
SHAH 

3953 0.18 01-04-2020     

    31-03-2021 Increase Buy 7416 0.30 

7 
ARUN CHITLANGIA 
(HUF) 

 
7200 

 
0.288 

 
01-04-2020 

    

 -Closing Balance   31-03-2021 Decrease Sold 7150 0.28 

         

 
8 

VIDYADHAR 
RAMCHANDRA 
NANE 

 
 

6600 

 
 

0.264 

 
 

01-04-2020 

    

 -Closing Balance   31-03-2021 - No Change 6600 0.264 

         

 
9 

VIJAYALAXMI 
GAJANAN 
SALVEKAR 

 
 

6000 

 
 

0.240 

 
 
01-04-2020 

    

 -Closing Balance   31-03-2021 - No Chan 6000 0.240 

         

10 ARUN CHITLANGIA 4300 0.172 01-04-2020     

 -Closing Balance   31-03-2021 Increase Buy 4340 0.17 

         

 
11 

A S 
ANANTKUNVARBA 
INDRA SINHAJI JHA 

4200 0.168 01-04-2020     

 -Closing Balance   31-03-2021 - No Change 4200 0.168 

 

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Shareholding of each 
Directorsand each Key 
ManagerialPersonnel 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year 

Cumulative Shareholding during theyear 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
Company 

Date Increase / 
Decrease in 

Shareholding 

Reason No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
Company 

1 Mr. Jashwant B. Mehta  

At the beginning of theyear 432220 17.27% 01-04-2020     

Date wise Increase / Decreasein 

Promoters Shareholding duringthe 

year specifying the reasons 

forincrease /decrease (e.g. 

Allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 

equityetc.) 

       

At the end of theyear (Closing 

Balance) 

  31.03.2021  No Change 432220 17.267% 
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2 Mr. Chetan J. Mehta  

At the beginning of the year 432220 17.27% 01-04-2020     

Date wise Increase / Decreasein 

Promoters Shareholding during the 

year specifying the reasons 

forincrease /decrease (e.g. 

Allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 

equityetc.) 

       

At the 

Balance) 

end of theyear (Closing   31.03.2021  No Change 432220 17.267% 

3 Mr. Rajesh M. Loya NIL NIL    NIL NIL 

4 Mr. Maneesh Taparia NIL NIL    NIL NIL 

5 Ms. Dhwani J. Mehta NIL NIL    NIL NIL 

6 Mr. Gautam Shah NA NA    NIL NIL 

7 Mr. Amit Shah 2405 0.10%    2405 0.10% 

8 Mr. Jaydeep V. Mehta  

At the beginning of the year 432225 17.27% 01-04-2020     

Date wise Increase / Decreasein 

Promoters Shareholding duringthe 

year specifying the reasons 

forincrease /decrease (e.g. 

Allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 

equityetc.) 

       

At the 

Balance) 

end of theyear (Closing 
  

31.03.2021 
 

Buy 432225 17.27 

Note: Listing Approval in Process for 300000 equity shares allotted to promoters of the company pursuant to warrant 

conversion. 

V. INDEBTEDNESS-Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment. 
 

 SecuredLoans 

excluding deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 

Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 

i) PrincipalAmount 216,444,598 354,450,000 - 570,894,598 

ii) Interest due but notpaid - 119,495,163 - 119,495,163 

iii) Interest accrued but notdue - - - - 

Total(i+ii+iii) 216,444,598 473,945,163 - 690,389,761 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 

*Addition 90,897,963 603,656,550 - 694,554,513 

* Reduction 46,449,462 712,151,713 - 758,601,175 

NetChange 44,448,501 (108,495,163) - (64,046,662) 

Indebtedness at end of the financial year 

i) Principal Amount 260,893,099 365,450,000 - 626,343,099 

ii) Interest due but not paid - 144,690,609 - 144,690,609 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total(i+ii+iii) 260,893,099 510,140,609 - 771,033,708 
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL- 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 
 

 
Sr. 
No 

 
Particulars of Remuneration 

Name of MD/WTD/Manager  
Total Amount 

 
Rajesh M. Loya 

1 Gross salary  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NIL 

(a) Salary as perprovisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-tax 

Act,1961 

© Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income- tax Act,1961 

2 Stock Option 

3 Sweat Equity 

4 Commission 

- as % of profit 

- others, specify… 

5 Others, please specify 

 Total(A) 

 Ceiling as per the Act N.A. 

B. Remuneration to other directors: 

 
Sr. No. 

 
Particulars of Remuneration 

Name of Directors  
Total Amount 

Maneesh 
Taparia 

Amit Shah Gautam Shah 

1 Independent Directors NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Fee for attending board and 

committee meetings 

4,000 4,000 4,000 12,000 

Commission - - - - 

Others, please specify - - - - 

Total (1) 4,000 4,000 4,000 12,000 

      

2 Other Non-Executive Directors NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Fee for attending board 

committee meetings 

- - - - 

Commission - - - - 

Others, please specify - - - - 

 Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Total(B)=(1+2) 4,000 4,000 4,000 12,000 

 Total Managerial Remuneration 4,000 4,000 4,000 12,000 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act - - - - 
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 
 

 

Sr. No. 
 

Particulars of Remuneration 

 Key Managerial Personnel 

CEO CS CFO Total 

- Manoj C. 
Patade 

Chetan 
Mehta 

 

1 Gross salary - 2,42,594p.a NIL 2,42,594 p.a 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961 

- - - - 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income- 

tax Act,1961 

- - - - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 

17(3) Income-tax Act,1961 

- - - - 

2 Stock Option - - - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - - - 

4 Commission - - - - 

 - as % of profit - - - - 

 Others, specify… - - - - 

5 Others, please specify - - - - 

Total - 2,42,594 p.a NIL 2,42,594 p.a 
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
 

Type Section of the 

Companies Act 

Brief Description Details of Penalty / 

Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 

imposed 

Authority [RD / 

NCLT/ COURT] 

Appeal made, if any 

(give Details) 

A.COMPANY 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

B.DIRECTORS 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

C. OTHER OFFICERS INDEFAULT 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

 

For Emerald Leisures Limited 
(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited 

 
 
 
 

Sd/- Sd/- 
Mr. Rajesh Loya Mr. Chetan Mehta 
Whole Time Director Director & CFO 
DIN: 00252470 DIN: 00235911 
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

Recoverability of Indirect tax receivables 

As at March 31, 2021, non-current assets 

in respect of tax and others include Input 

Credit Recoverable (VAT) amounting to 

Rs. 61,27,070/- which are pending 

Principal Audit Procedures 

We have involved our internal experts to 

review the nature of the amounts recoverable, 

the sustainability and the likelihood of recoverability 

upon final resolution 

 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of M/s. Emerald Leisures Limited 

 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Emerald Leisures Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet 

as at 31st March 2021, the statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year 

ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 

date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that  

are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit  

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Standalone financial  

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters 

described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in  
the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report,  
Corporate Governance Report, and Shareholder Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's 
report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the management. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination 
of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on record by the Board o f 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of 
the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the 
Act, as amended : 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration has not 
paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year and therefore provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable to 
the Company. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2016 ('the order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of section 

143(11) of the Act, we view in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the 
extent applicable. 

 
 

For M S Mandlecha & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No. 129037W 

 
 

Mayur Suresh Mandlecha 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 124248 

UDIN: 21124248AAAADT2019 

 
Signed at Mumbai, June 30, 2021 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members of 
Emerald Leisures Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 
31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial  
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of col lusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For M S Mandlecha & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No. 129037W 

 
Mayur Suresh Mandlecha 

Proprietor 
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members of 
Emerald Leisures Limited of even date) 

I) In respect of the Company's fixed assets: 

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is  

reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets 
were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the examination of the 
conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings 
which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

ii) The Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and no material discrepancies 
were noticed during such verification. 

iii)  The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or other parties 
covered in the registered maintained under section 189 of Companies Act, 2013. 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee or security in 
respect of which the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 were required to be complied with. 

v) The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2021 and 
therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,  

2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees' State 

Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and 
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 
Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in 
arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

viii) Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion that the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to financial institutions, banks and government or has not issued any 
debentures. 

ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and 
hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and exlanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or no material 
fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid/provided managerial 
remuneration and therefore the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. 

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 

of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly paid 
convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xv) In Our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

For M S Mandlecha & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 129037W 

Mayur Suresh Mandlecha 
Proprietor 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 

PARTICULARS Note As at 31st Mar, 2021 As at 31st Mar, 2020 

  
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

I ASSETS    

1 Non-Current Assets    

 (a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 712,791,680 753,080,989 
 (b) Financial Assets    

 (i) Investments 3.1 25,419,722 11,619,756 
 (ii) Loans 3.2 2,270,954 2,450,544 
 (iii) Other Financial Assets 3.3 800,000 800,000 
 (c) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 1,720,590 1,720,590 
 (d) Other non current assets 5 6,896,738 7,264,370 
 Sub-Total - Non-Current Assets  749,899,684 776,936,249 

 
2 

 
Current Assets 

   

 (a) Inventories 6 5,003,714 5,282,618 
 (b) Financial Assets    

 (i) Trade receivables 7.1 7,854,828 8,333,058 
 (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7.2 2,550,938 1,914,567 
 (iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 7.3 3,066,294 3,000,000 
 (iv) Loans 7.4 251,119 147,406 
 (v) Other financial assets 7.5 110,954 87,917 
 (c) Current Tax Assets 8 4,714,806 4,298,912 
 (d) Other current assets 9 3,487,710 3,798,465 
 Sub-Total - Current Assets  27,040,363 26,862,942 
     

 TOTAL - ASSETS  776,940,047 803,799,191 

 
II 

 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

   

1 EQUITY    

 (a) Equity Share Capital 10 25,031,000 25,031,000 
 (b) Other equity 11 (711,321,255) (603,973,096) 
 Sub-Total - Equity  (686,290,255) (578,942,096) 

 
2 

 
LIABLITIES 

   

 Non-Current Liabilities    

 (a) Financial Liabilities    

 (i) Borrowings 12.1 727,390,983 691,494,984 
 (ii) Other financial liabilities 12.2 59,804,938 53,088,764 
 (b) Provisions 13 1,400,725 1,763,878 
 Sub-Total - Non-Current Liabilities  788,596,646 746,347,626 

  
Current Liabilities 

   

 (a) Financial Liabilities    

 (i) Borrowings 14.1 375,049,525 354,450,000 
 (ii) Trade Payables    

 (a) Total outstanding dues of micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 
14.2 - - 

 (b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other    
 than micro enterprises and small 14.2 2,781,487 2,277,028 

 enterprises    

 (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 14.3 176,830,289 152,657,901 
 (b) Other current liabilities 15 113,549,226 125,014,345 
 (c) Provisions 16 6,423,129 1,994,388 
 Sub-Total - Current Liabilities  674,633,656 636,393,661 
     

 TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  776,940,047 803,799,191 

 Significant Accounting Policies 1   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For M/s M. S. Mandlecha & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 
Mayur Suresh Mandlecha 

Proprietor 
Membership No. 124248 
UDIN: 21124248AAAADT2019 

 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/06/2021 

Chetan Mehta 
Director & CFO 
(DIN:00235911) 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 30/06/2021 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 
 

  
Particulars 

 
Note 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2021 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

I Income    

 (a) Revenue from operations 17 47,390,356 132,228,903 

 (b) Other Income 18 2,185,473 1,734,382 

 Total Income (I)  49,575,829 133,963,285 

 
II 

 
Expenses 

   

 (a) Cost of materials consumed 19 6,761,559 27,250,544 

 (b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 

stock-in-trade 
20 278,904 (11,687) 

 (c) Employee benefits expense 21 11,249,591 27,662,229 
 (d) Finance Cost 22 77,203,237 72,306,431 
 (e) Depreciation & amortisation expense 2 40,289,308 49,476,154 

 (f) Other expenses 23 21,924,939 49,517,468 

 Total expenses (II)  157,707,539 226,201,140 

 
III 

 
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-II) 

  
(108,131,710) 

 
(92,237,855) 

IV Exceptional items 
 

- - 

 
V 

 
Profit / (Loss) before tax (III-IV) 

  
(108,131,710) 

 
(92,237,855) 

VI Tax expense: 
   

 (a) Current tax  - - 
 (b) Deferred tax  - - 

 
VII 

 
Profit / (Loss) for the period (V-VI) 

  
(108,131,710) 

 
(92,237,855) 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income 
 

783,551 175,862 
 A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss    

 (a) Re-measurements of the defined benefit 

liabilities/(asset) 

 
783,551 175,862 

 (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified    

 to profit or loss    

 
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

   

 (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to    

 profit or loss    

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII+VIII) 
 

(107,348,159) (92,061,993) 

 
X 

 
Earnings per share (of Rs. 10/- each): 

 
30 

  

 (a) Basic  (42.89) (40.53) 

 (b) Diluted  (42.89) (40.53) 

X.i Number of Shares used in computing earning per share 
 

2503100 2271319 

 Significant Accounting Policies 1   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For M/s M. S. Mandlecha & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Sd/- 
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 

Mayur Suresh Mandlecha 
Proprietor 

Membership No. 124248 
UDIN: 21124248AAAADT2019 

 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 30/06/2021 

Chetan Mehta 
Director & CFO 
(DIN:00235911) 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 30/06/2021 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March, 2021 

For the year ended 

31 March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 

Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation 

(Profit) / loss on sale / write off of assets 

Finance costs 

Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back 

Balances w/off 

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 

Changes in working capital: 

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets: 

Inventories 

Trade receivables 

Short-term loans and advances 

Long-term loans and advances 

Other non current assets 

Other current assets 

 
 
 

40,289,308 

 
77,203,237 

 
- 

 
(108,131,710) 

 
 
 
 
 

117,492,545 

 
 
 

49,476,154 

(200,000) 

72,306,431 

 
- 

 
(92,237,855) 

 
 
 
 
 

121,582,585 

 
 
 

278,904 

478,230 

(126,750) 

179,590 

367,631 

(105,140) 

9,360,836  
 
 

(11,687) 

7,019,482 

110,595 

(26,225) 

95,217 

(38,518) 

29,344,730 

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities: 

Trade payables 

Other current liabilities 

Other non- current liabilities 

Provisions 

 
504,460 

12,707,269 

6,716,174 

4,065,588 

 
 
 

 
25,065,957 

 
197,991 

8,217,966 

14,473,269 

30,414 

 
 
 

 
30,068,504 

 
Cash flow from extraordinary items 

Cash generated from operations 

Net income tax (paid) / refunds 

 34,426,793 

- 

34,426,793 

 59,413,234 

- 

59,413,234 

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 
 

34,426,793 
 

59,413,234 

 
B. Cash flow from investing activities 

Capital expenditure on fixed assets, including capital advances 

Purchase of Fixed Assets 

Sale of Fixed Assets 

Investments in Bank Deposits 

Investments in Corporate Bond Funds 

  
 
 

0 

- 

(66,294) 

(13,799,966) 

  
 
 

(275,894) 

200,000 

(1,000,000) 

(976,338) 

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)  (13,866,260)  (2,052,231) 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital/Share warrants 

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 

Proceeds from other short-term borrowings 

Finance cost 

 
- 

35,895,999 

20,599,525 

(77,203,237) 

  
2,250,000 

27,211,382 

(17,268,534) 

(72,306,431) 

 

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 
 

(20,707,713) 
 

(60,113,583) 

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yea 

Net Other Comprehensive (Expense)/Income 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

 

(147,180) 

1,914,567 
783,551 

 

(2,752,580) 

4,491,284 
175,862 

2,550,938 1,914,567 

As per our report of even date attached 

For M/s M. S. Mandlecha & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 
Mayur Suresh Mandlecha 
Proprietor 

Membership No. 124248 

 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/06/2021 

Chetan Mehta 
Director & CFO 
(DIN:00235911) 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 30/06/2021 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021 

 

(a) Equity Share Capital 
 

Particulars Amount (in Rs.) 

Balance at April 01, 2019 2,20,31,000 
  

Shares Issued during the year 30,00,000 

Balance at March 31, 2020 2,50,31,000 
  

Shares Issued during the year - 

Balance at March 31, 2021 2,50,31,000 

Note : During FY 19-20 Shares were issued in exchange/conversion of shares warrants 

 
(b) Other Equity (Amount in Rs.) 

 
 

 
Particulars 

 
Reserves and Surplus 

Items of Other 

comprehensive 
income 

 
 

 
Total  

 

Retained 

Earnings 

 

Capital 

Redemption 

Reserve 

 
 

Revaluation 

Reserve 

Equity Component 

of Other Financial 

Instruments 

(Share Warrants) 

Re-measurements 

of 

the defined 

benefit 

       

Opening Balance as on April 01, 2019 (80,35,62,933) 64,27,000 28,52,24,830 7,50,000  (51,11,61,103) 
       

Profit/ (loss) for the year (9,22,37,855) - -   (9,22,37,855) 

Issue of Shares warrants    22,50,000  22,50,000 
    (30,00,000)  (30,00,000) 

Other comprehensive income/(loss)     1,75,862 1,75,862 

Closing Balance as on March 31, 2020 (89,58,00,788) 64,27,000 28,52,24,830  1,75,862 (60,39,73,096) 
       

Profit/ (loss) for the year (10,81,31,710) - -   (10,81,31,710) 

Issue of Shares warrants      - 

Transfer Share Warrant into Share      - 

Other comprehensive income/(loss)     7,83,551 7,83,551 
Balance at the End of reporting period i.e. March 31, 2021 (1,00,39,32,498) 64,27,000 28,52,24,830 - 9,59,413 (71,13,21,255) 

 
 

 
As per our report of even date attached 

For M/s M. S. Mandlecha & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

 
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 

Mayur Suresh Mandlecha Chetan Mehta Rajesh Loya Manoj Patade 

Proprietor Director & CFO Director Company Secretary 

Membership No. 124248 (DIN:00235911) (DIN:00252470) 
 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/06/2021 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 30/06/2021 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

Note 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. BACKGROUN 

The Company is a Public limited Company, domiciled in India and registered with the ROC - Mumbai (Maharashtra) vide 
Corporate Identification number (CIN) L74900MH1948PLC006791. Registered office of the Company is situated at Plot No. 
366/15, Swastik Park, Near Mangal Anand Hospital, off E. Express Highway, Chembur, Mumbai-400071. The Company is 
into the business of Hotels-Non Rated, Restaurant with Bars and other Hospitality Service. 

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

(I) Compliance with Ind AS 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to 
as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read 
with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The 
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(ii) Historical cost convention, accrual and going concern basis of accounting 

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for th following: 

1) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 

2) Net defined benefit liability - Measured at present value of defined benefit obligations less fair value of plan assets 

(iii) Current and non-current classification 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and 
other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its 
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities 

(iv) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the 
application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical  
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

C. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(I) Property, plant and equipment 

Items of property, plant and equipment except freehold land are stated at cost of acquisition/ construction less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is not depreciated. 

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit  
and Loss. Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed 
as “Capital work-in-progress”. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the written down value method over the useful lives of  
assets as per the schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 and adopted by the Management. 

Expenditure during construction period including pre-operative expenses (net of pre-operative income), all directly 
attributable expenses are capitalized. 

(ii) Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 
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a. Financial assets 

Classification 

The Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial 
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of financial assets, other than those designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to or 
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

Amortised cost 

A financial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual 
terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 
method. 

Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 

Investments in mutual funds falling in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading 
are classified as at FVTPL. 

b. Financial liabilities 

Financial instruments with a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial assets is recognised as financial liability by the 
Company. 

Classification 

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

Financial Liabilities at Amortised cost 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortization done using the EIR method is included as finance costs in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iii) Inventories 

Real estate stock-in-trade valued at cost of land including the accretion to its value on change in its character from 'capital assets' to 
'trading assets' plus development expenses incurred to date, or net realizable value, whichever is lower. 

(iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet and cash flow statement includes cash at bank, cash, cheque, draft on hand and 
demand deposits with an original maturity of less than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(v) Retirement and other employee benefits 

Gratuity Liability: - Provision is made for Payment of Gratuity covering eligible employees of the Company. Liability with regard to 
Gratuity is determined as per actuarial valuation.Leave encashment- Provision is made for leave encashment for un-expired leave 
as at the year-end on actuarial basis. 
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(vi) Revenue recognition 

Revenue (income) is recognized when no significant uncertainty as to determination or realization exists. Revenue from non-refundable 
membership fees is recognised on a time- proportion basis over the period of membership. The membership fees received are 
recognised as a liability (measured at present value) on Day 1 and credited to Profit and Loss account over the membership period. 

 
Refundable Membership Fees received are not credited to Profit and Loss but are recognised as financial liability and measured at 
amortised cost. The same are shown as Refundable Membership Deposits under Financial Liabilities in the Balance Sheet . 

(vii) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of 
such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. 
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Note 3.1- Non-Current Investments 

 
 

Particulars 

As at 31 March, 

2021 

As at 31 March, 

2020 

 

(Amount in Rs.) 
 

(Amount in Rs.) 

Investment in Mutual Funds 

Unquoted 

 At Fair Value through Profit and Loss 

4,14,251.748 (Previous year-1,48,474.352) Units of Aditya Birla Sun life Corporate Bond 

Fund of Face Value of Rs . 10/- each 

 
Investment in equity instruments 

Unquoted 

 At Fair Value through Profit and Loss 

1000 (Previous year-1000) shares of Rupee Co Op Bank Limited of the 

face value of Rs. 25/- each 

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments 

 

 
Total 

 

 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

Aggregate amount of diminuition in the value of investments 

 
 
 

2,54,18,722 

 
 
 

1,16,18,756 

2,54,18,722 

 
 
 

 
25,000 

24,000 

1,16,18,756 

 
 
 

 
25,000 

24,000 

1,000 1,000 

2,54,19,722 1,16,19,756 

 

 
2,54,43,722 

24,000 

 

 
1,16,43,756 

24,000 

Note 3.2 - Non- Current Loans 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

Unsecured, considered good 

Security deposits 

 
Total 

 
22,70,954 

 
24,50,544 

22,70,954 24,50,544 

Note 3.3 Other Financial Assets 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

Balances with banks 

In fixed deposits (having Maturity > 12 months) * 

Total 

 
8,00,000 

 
8,00,000 

8,00,000 8,00,000 

* Note 

Above Fixed Deposit includes Rs. 8,00,000/- of Fixed Deposit with Sangli Urban Co-Operative Bank Ltd which is pledged 

against Bank Guarantee. 

 

Note 4 Deferred tax assets 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Deferred tax assets (net) 

Total 

 
17,20,590 

 
17,20,590 

17,20,590 17,20,590 



EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2021 
(Formerly known as “Apte Amalgamations Limited”) 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

41 

 

 

 

Note - 5 Other non current assets 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Balances with government authorities 

 
Total 

 
68,96,738 

 
72,64,370 

68,96,738 72,64,370 

 
Note -6 Inventories 

(At lower of cost and net realisable value) 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Stock-in-trade (acquired for trading) 

  
37,54,229 

 
37,54,229 

Consumables  12,49,485 15,28,389 

 Total 50,03,714 52,82,618 

 
Note- 7.1 Trade Receivables 

Particulars As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Unsecured, Considered Good 

   

Membership Fees Receivable  53,90,394 55,86,606 

Banquet income Receivable  21,35,364 25,61,938 

Other Receivable  3,29,070 1,84,514 

 Total 78,54,828 83,33,058 

Note -7.2 Cash and cash equivalents 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

(a) Cash on hand 

(b) Balances with banks 

(i) In current accounts 

 
 
 

 
Total 

22,82,472 14,88,799 

2,68,466 4,25,768 

25,50,938 19,14,567 

 

Note -7.3 Other Bank Balances 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Fixed Deposits with Bank (Maturity < 12 Months) 

 
Total 

 
30,66,294 

 
30,00,000 

30,66,294 30,00,000 
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Note-7.4 Current loans 

Particulars As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Unsecured, considered good 

Loans and advances to employees 

 
Total 

 

 
2,51,119 

 

 
1,47,406 

2,51,119 1,47,406 

 

Note-7.5 Other current financial assets 

Particulars As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

Unsecured, considered good 

Other Advances given 

 
Total 

 
1,10,954 

 
87,917 

1,10,954 87,917 

 

Note-8 Current Tax Assets 

Particulars As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Advance Tax 

 
Total 

 
47,14,806 

 
42,98,912 

47,14,806 42,98,912 

 
Note- 9 Other Current Assets 

Particulars As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Consumables 

  
25,88,039 

 
28,91,048 

Prepaid expenses  6,27,178 7,65,017 

Balances with government authorities  2,72,494 1,42,400 

 Total 34,87,710 37,98,465 
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Note 10 - Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 
As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020 

No. of Shares Amount in Rs. No. of Shares Amount in Rs. 

 
Authorised 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Par value 

 
Issued, Subscribed and paid up 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Par value fully Paid Up 

 

 
80,00,000 

 

 
8,00,00,000 

 

 
80,00,000 

 

 
8,00,00,000 

80,00,000 8,00,00,000 80,00,000 8,00,00,000 

    

25,03,100 2,50,31,000 25,03,100 2,50,31,000 

    

 

 
a) Reconciliation of changes in equity share capital 

Particulars 
As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020 

No. of Shares Amount in Rs. No. of Shares Amount in Rs. 

 
At the beginning of the year 

Add : Shares issued during the year 

 
At the end of the year 

 
25,03,100 

- 

 
2,50,31,000 

- 

 
22,03,100 

3,00,000 

 
2,20,31,000 

30,00,000 

25,03,100 2,50,31,000 25,03,100 2,50,31,000 

Note : During FY 19-20 Shares were issued in exchange/conversion of shares warrants 

 
b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the company 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020 

No. of Shares % of share holding No. of Shares % of share holding 

 
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up held by - 

    

Jaydeep Vinod Mehta 4,32,225 17.27 4,32,225 17.27 

Nikhil Vinod Mehta 4,32,220 17.27 4,32,220 17.27 

Jashwant Bhaichand Mehta 4,32,220 17.27 4,32,220 17.27 

Chetan Jashwant Mehta 4,32,220 17.27 4,32,220 17.27 

AYAY Commodity Services Pvt. Ltd. 2,30,115 9.19 2,30,115 9.19 

Total 19,59,000 78.26 19,59,000 78.26 

 
c) Rights , preference and restrictions attached to shares 

Equity Shares : 

The company has only one class of Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10/-. Each shareholder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. 
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining balance of assets if any, after preferential 
payments and to have a share in surplus assets of the Company, proportionate to their individual shareholding in the paid up equity capital of the Company 
. 

 

 
d) The Aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash on the last five years 
immediately preceding the balance sheet date is NIL 
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Note 11 - Other Equity 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

(a) Capital redemption reserve 

Opening balance 

Add: Additions during the year 

Less: Utilised during the year 

Closing balance 

 
(b) Revaluation Reserve - Land 

Opening balance 

Add: Additions during the year 

Less: Utilised during the year 

Closing balance 

 

(c) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Opening balance 

Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year 

Closing balance 

 
(d) Money received against share warrants   

Opening balance 

Add: Money Received during year 

Less: Transfer to Equity Shares 

Closing balance 

 
(e) Other comprehensive income 

Opening balance 

Add: Movement during year 

Closing balance 

Total 

 
6,427,000 

 
6,427,000 

- - 

- - 

6,427,000 6,427,000 

 
285,224,830 

 
285,224,830 

- - 

- - 

285,224,830 285,224,830 

 
(895,800,788) 

 
(803,562,933) 

(108,131,710) (92,237,855) 

(1,003,932,498) (895,800,788) 

 
- 

- 750,000 

 2,250,000 

 (3,000,000) 

--  

 
175,862 

 
- 

783,551 175,862 

959,413 175,862 

(711,321,255) (603,973,096) 

Note 12.1 Non-Current Borrowings 
 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Unsecured 

  

Redeemable Preference Shares (Refer Note (i) Below) 500,000,000 500,000,000 

Secured 
  

Term loan from Bank (Refer Note (ii) Below) 227,390,983 191,494,984 

Total 727,390,983 691,494,984 

 

Note: 

(i) Terms of the Preference Shares are as follows : 

Preference shares include 50,00,000 (Previous year : 50,00,000) Non Cumulative, Non Convertible, Non Participating, Redeemable Preference 
shares of face value of Rs. 100/- each. The preference shares carry 10% Dividend and are redeemable at par after 10 years from the date of issue. 
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(ii) Term Loans : 

a) Term Loan includes loan from an NBFC amounting to Rs. 26,08,93,099/- (Previous year : 21,64,44,598/-) carrying floating interest rate linked to the 
NBFC's Internal reference rate. Total amount outstanding as on 21.03.2021 is Rs. 26,08,93,099/- out of which Rs. 3,22,46,474/- has been shown under 
Other Current Financial Liabilities as current maturity of long term loan. The loan is repayable in 8 years in equal monthly installments starting from 
15th November, 2018. 

 

b) During the year Company received term Loan under ECGS Rs. 4,35,52,000/- which is includes in above term loan . The loan is repayable in 4 years , 
first 12 months is moratorium and then in equal monthly installments starting from 5th October, 2020. 

The loan is secured as follows : 

1) Primary Security : Hypothecation on all present & future current assets of the company. 

2) Collateral Security : 

(i) Residential Property at Dadar East Mumbai 

(ii) Land & Building located at Chembur Mumbai 

(iii) Commercial Property located at Fort Mumbai 

Note 12.2 Other financial liabilities (Non Current) 
 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Refundable Membership Deposits 

 
Total 

 
59,804,938 

 
53,088,764 

59,804,938 53,088,764 

Note 13 Provisions (Long term) 
 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Provision for Employee Benefits 

   

Gratuity  1,093,737 1,392,392 

Leave encashment  306,988 371,486 

 Total 1,400,725 1,763,878 

Note 14.1 Borrowings (Current) 

 

Particulars 

As at 31 March, 

2021 

As at 31 March, 

2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Loans repayable on demand (Unsecured)* 

   

From related parties 
 

218,950,000 207,950,000 

From others  156,099,525 146,500,000 

 Total 375,049,525 354,450,000 

 
* Above loans carry interest rate ranging from 8% to 12%. 
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Note 14.2 Trade Payables 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 

2021 

As at 31 March, 

2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Creditors for Expenses 

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(refer note 29) 

 
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 

 
 
 

Total 

 
 
 
 
 

2,781,487 

 
 

- 

 

 
2,277,028 

2,781,487 2,277,028 

Note 14.3 Other Current Financial Liabilities 

 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 

2021 

As at 31 March, 

2020 

 
(Amount in Rs.) 

 
(Amount in Rs.) 

 

Bank Overdraft 

  

9,492,731 
 

9,896,843 

Current Maturities of Long Term Loan  32,246,474 23,265,895 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings  135,091,084 119,495,163 

 Total 176,830,289 152,657,901 

Note 15- Other current liabilities 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 

2021 

As at 31 March, 

2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Statutory remittances 

  
3,082,212 

 
3,345,643 

Advance Received from Customers  3,528,603 2,821,953 

Refundable Membership Income received in advance  50,352,507 56,809,966 

Non- Refundable Membership Fees received in advance  25,681,770 28,109,698 

Deferred Revenue (Non- refundable memberships)  24,022,694 26,318,462 

Other current Liabilities  6,881,440 7,608,623 

 Total 113,549,226 125,014,345 

Note 16 Provisions (Short term) 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 

2021 

As at 31 March, 

2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 

Provisions 

   

Expenses  5,835,395 1,522,205 

Leave Encashment  226,502 322,982 

Gratuity  361,232 149,201 

 Total 6,423,129 1,994,388 
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Note- 17 Revenue from operations 

 

Particulars 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2021 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Banquet Income 

  
8,813,473 

 
54,534,425 

Restaurant Income  3,997,338 16,876,735 

Membership Sales & AMC Income  19,817,780 20,578,466 

Guest Fees & Other Club Income  246,746 1,363,020 

Tower Rental  1,390,500 1,330,000 

Spa Income  1,240,954 3,344,519 

Room Income  11,883,566 34,201,738 
 Total 47,390,356 132,228,903 

 
 

Note- 18 Other Income 

 
Particulars 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2021 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Interest received on FD with Banks 

  
279,807 

 
262,331 

Miscellaneous Income   1,220 

Discounts and Balances Written Back  42,470 161,849 

Interest on Security Deposit  62,131 132,644 

Fair Value Gain on MF Investment  1,801,066 976,338 

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment   200,000 
 Total 2,185,473 1,734,382 

 
 

Note- 19 Cost of Material Consumed 

 

Particulars 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2021 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Housekeeping Material 

   
- 

Other Consumables (Maintenance Stores)  14,600 17,700 

Stock,Adjustment,Damage  303,659 214,077 

Laundry expenses  212,301 1,707,670 

Liquor expenses  406,876 1,659,350 

Purchase of stock-in trade (Consumption)    

Domestic  6,103,026 23,640,061 

Foreign-    

Imports   - 
 Total 7,040,463 27,238,858 
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Note- 20 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 

 

Particulars 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2021 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

Inventories at the end of the year:    

Stock-in-trade -Material for consumption  1,249,485 1,528,389 

Stock-in-trade -Land  3,754,229 3,754,229 

  5,003,714 5,282,618 

Inventories at the beginning of the year:    

Stock-in-trade -Material for consumption  1,528,389 1,516,703 

Stock-in-trade -Land  3,754,229 3,754,229 

  5,282,618 5,270,932 
    

 Net (increase) / decrease 278,904 (11,687) 

 
Note- 21 Employee benefits expense 

 

Particulars For the year ended 31 

March, 2021 

For the year ended 31 

March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

Salaries and wages  10,103,305 25,905,817 

Contributions to provident and other funds  224,992 405,272 

Gratuity to staff/workers  696,927 482,798 

Staff welfare expenses  224,367 868,342 
 Total 11,249,591 27,662,229 

 
 

Note- 22 Finance costs 
 

 
Particulars 

For the year ended 

31 March, 2021 

For the year ended 

31 March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

Interest expense on Borrowings 

Secured Loans 

Unsecured Loans 

Unwinding of interest on membership deposits 

 
 
 
 

Total 

 
29,503,764 

 
27,023,193 

38,704,953 37,028,560 

8,994,520 8,254,678 

77,203,237 72,306,431 
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Note- 23 Other expenses 
 

 

Particulars 

For the year ended 

31 March, 2021 

For the year ended 

31 March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

Advertising and Publicity Sales Promotion  164,676 264,284 

Bank Charges & Credit Card Swiping Charges  215,857 994,800 

Club Direct -Banquet Expense & Adda  - 2,588,226 

Labour & Housekeeping Expense  2,165,339 9,808,843 

Filing fees and Expenses  324,617 427,637 

Ineligible Input Tax Credit  646,481 1,714,209 

Insurance Expense  834,669 800,576 

Legal and Professional Fees  1,493,570 3,506,917 

Payment to Auditors*  300,000 300,000 

Commission and Consultancy  330,616 2,118,014 

Postage and Courier  2,470 23,074 

Power & Fuel Expense  5,645,598 16,045,585 

Printing and stationery  2,908 113,722 

License Fees  1,020,138 620,309 

Trade Refusal Charges  - 380,285 

Repairs and Maintenance  1,157,647 1,901,105 

Security Expense (Security Salary)  1,017,262 1,678,401 

Telephone & Communication (Internet)  233,867 255,149 

Transportation, Travelling and Conveyance  194,985 305,946 

Interest on delay TDS  234,660 6,378 

Interest on (SEBI) Penalty  9,000 - 

Recruitment expense  99,960 252,704 

Water charges  72,320 182,231 

Property tax  4,769,328 3,455,523 

Other Miscellaneous expenses  534,598 851,539 

Balance Written Off  20,447 64,473 

Discount-Members  433,926 857,540 
 Total 21,924,939 49,517,468 

 

 
*Note--- Payment to Auditors 

 

 
Particulars 

For the year ended 

31 March, 2021 

For the year ended 

31 March, 2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

 
Statutory Audit 

  
200,000 

 
200,000 

Tax Audit  50,000 50,000 

VAT & Other Matters  50,000 50,000 

 Total 300,000 300,000 
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Note - 24 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for) 

A. Contingent Liabilities: 

 As at 31st 

March, 2021 

(Rs.) 

As at 31st 

March, 2020 

(Rs.) 

 
i. Disputed demand by VAT authorities, appealed, pending disposal. 

In the above matter, the company does not expect any liability to crystallize. 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

B. Commitments: 

 
As at 31stMarch, 

2021(Rs.) 

As at 31stMarch, 

2020(Rs.) 

 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 

 

 
NIL 

 

 
NIL 

Note - 25 

Real estate stock-in-trade (Swastik Textiles Division) of Rs.3,754,229/- (as at 31st March, 2020, Rs.3,754,229/-) has been valued at cost of 

land including the accretion to its value on change of its character from ‘capital assets’ to ‘trading assets’ plus development expenses 

incurred. The plots and area of these real estate stocks in trade (land) is as under: 

i. Plot No CTS 366, area 2372 Sq Meters (Mani garage)- Encroached 
Both the above aggregate 12376 Sq 

Mtrs. 
ii. Plot No CTS 366 / 6 , area 10,004.1 Sq Meters - Encroached by slum & 

unauthorized occupants 

 
Note - 26 Confirmation letters have not been obtained from all the debtors, creditors, loans/ advances given and for certain loans/ 

deposits taken and hence their balances are subject to reconciliation and consequent adjustments, if any. 

Note - 27 Related party transactions 

A. Related Parties (As identified by the Management In the Light of Requirements of Ind AS 24) 

1. Key Management Personnel 

(a) Rajesh Loya 

(b) Jashwant Mehta 

(c) Chetan Mehta 

(d) Jaydeep Mehta 

 
2. Other Related Parties 

(a) Dhwani Mercantile Private Limited 

(b) Juhu Resorts and Development Private Limited 

(c) Neptune Resorts & Developers Private Limited 

(d) Techno Broking & Financial Services Private Limited 

(e) Techno Equity Broking Private Limited 

(f) Techno Property Developers Private Limited 

(g) Juhu Tours & Travels Private Limited 

(h) Nikhil Mehta 

(i) Maneesh Taparia 

(j) Amit Vardhaman Shah 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 
B. Transactions with Related Parties: 

Details of transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2021 

 
 

 
(Figures in Rs.) 

 
PARTY NAME 

NATURE OF 

TRANSACTION 

Opening Balance 

(Dr.)/Cr. 

 
Dr. Amt. 

 
Cr. Amt. 

Closing 

Balance (Dr.)/ 

Cr. 

Ahmednagar Finance Ltd. Loan taken/ repaid 
0 25,000 25,000 0 

8,750,000 16,725,000 7,975,000 0 

Dhwani Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. Loan taken/ repaid 
55,625,000 256,925,000 235,400,000 34,100,000 

25,725,000 201,875,000 231,775,000 55,625,000 

Techno Broking & Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. Loan taken/ repaid 
NIL NIL NIL NIL 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Techno Property Developers Pvt Ltd. Loan taken/ repaid 
9,225,000 162,806,550 198,856,550 45,275,000 

38,850,000 118,475,000 88,850,000 9,225,000 

Juhu Resorts & Development Pvt. Ltd. Loan taken/ repaid 
122,950,000 20,000,000 20,475,000 123,425,000 

84,585,000 22,800,000 61,165,000 122,950,000 

Neptune Resorts & Development Pvt. Ltd. Loan taken/ repaid 
1,625,000 475,000 NIL 1,150,000 

65,025,000 68,000,000 4,600,000 1,625,000 

Techno Realtors Pvt Ltd Loan taken/ repaid 
17,525,000 152,425,000 148,900,000 14,000,000 

NIL 25,325,000 42,850,000 17,525,000 

Jashwant Mehta Loan taken/ repaid 
1,000,000 NIL NIL 1,000,000 

NIL NIL 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Ahmednagar Finance Ltd. Interest on Loan 
N.A. 0   

N.A. 161,994   

Dhwani Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. Interest on Loan 
N.A. 3,208,629   

N.A. 4,193,636   

Juhu Resorts & Development Pvt. Ltd. Interest on Loan 
N.A. 11,497,014   

N.A. 10,252,703   

Neptune Resorts & Development Pvt. Ltd. Interest on Loan 
N.A. 146,103   

N.A. 1,484,096   

Techno Broking & Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. Interest on Loan 
N.A. NIL   

N.A. NIL   

Techno Realtors Pvt Ltd Interest on Loan 
N.A. 3,561,288   

N.A. 1,928,458   

Techno Property Developers Pvt Ltd. Interest on Loan 
N.A. 2,611,919   

N.A. 1,342,800   

Jashwant Mehta Interest on Loan 
N.A. 100,000   

NIL 36,712   

Juhu Tours & Travels Private Limited Travelling Expenses 
N.A.    

N.A. 30,900   

 
Amit Vardhaman Shah 

 
Annual Membership Fees 

N.A.  14000  

N.A. 
 

14,000 
 

 
Maneesh Taparia 

 
Banquet & Room Sales 

N.A. 
 

NIL 
 

N.A.  569039  

 
 
 
 

Juhu Resorts & Development Pvt. Ltd. 

Outlet & Banquet Sales 
N.A.  240,440  

N.A.  28100  

Rooms Purchase 
N.A. NIL   

N.A. 34,312   

Rooms Sales 
N.A.  NIL  

N.A.  50,051  

Reimbursement of 

Support Services for Sales 

& Marketing 

N.A. 
 

NIL 
 

N.A. 
 

585,000 
 

Note : Previous Years Figures are in Italics 
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ISSUE OF NON CONVERTIBLE, NON CUMULATIVE, NON PARTICIPATING, REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES 

Name of Shareholder No. of Preference Shares 
Allotted Face Value Total Amount 

Received Dividend (%) Redeemable 
after 

Neptune Resorts & Development Pvt Ltd 
NIL N.A NIL N.A N.A 

4,00,000 100/- 4,00,00,000 10% 10 years 

Pramila Jaswant Mehta 
NIL N.A NIL N.A N.A 

1,00,000 100/- 1,00,00,000 10% 10 years 

Note : Previous Years Figures are in Italics 
 

ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES 

 
Name of Shareholder 

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 

No. of Equity Shares 

Allotted 

Total Amount 

Received 

No. of Equity 

Shares Allotted 

Total Amount 

Received 

Chetan Mehta   75,000 750,000.00 

Jashwant Mehta   75,000 750,000.00 

Jaydeep Mehta   75,000 750,000.00 

Nikhil Mehta   75,000 750,000.00 

Total  - 300,000 3,000,000.00 

Note : During FY 19-20 Shares were issued in exchange/conversion of shares warrants 

Note : Previous Years Figures are in Italics 

 
Note - 28 Employee Benefits 

 

(i) Defined Contribution Plans: 

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund, superannuation fund, Employees State Insurance Corporation and other 

retirement benefits for qualifying employees. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage / fixed 

amount of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions as specified under the law are paid to the respective fund set up by the 

government authority. 

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year : 
 

Description 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 

Employer's contribution to Provident Fund 160,305.00 405,272 

Total 160,305.00 405,272 

 
(ii) Defined Benefit Plan: 

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of 

provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,or as per the Company’s scheme whichever is more beneficial. 

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at 

March 31, 2021. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were 

measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method(PUC). 

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts 

recognised in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date: 

 

A. The amount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet : 

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 

 
Present value of obligation at the end of period 

 
1,454,969.00 

 
1,541,593.00 

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of period - - 

Surplus / (Deficit) (1,454,969.00) (1,541,593.00) 

Current liability 361,232.00 149,201.00 

Non-current liability 1,093,737.00 1,392,392.00 

Amount not recognised due to asset ceiling - - 

Net asset / (liability) recognised in balance sheet 1,454,969.00 1,541,593.00 
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B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset)/ liability and its 

components: 

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 

 
i) Changes in defined benefit obligations 

  

Liability at the beginning of the year 1,541,593.00 1,234,657.00 

Interest cost 100,204.00 87,625.00 

Current service cost 596,723.00 463,798.00 

Benefits paid - - 

Remeasurements (783,551.00) (175,862.00) 

Net transfer in / (out) (pursuant to the Merger) - (68,625.00) 

Past service cost - - 

Liability at the end of the year 1,454,969.00 1,541,593.00 

 

ii) Expense recognised in the statement in profit and loss   

Current service cost 596,723.00 463,798.00 

Interest costs 100,204.00 87,625.00 

Expected return on plan assets - - 

Net transfer in / (out) (pursuant to the Merger) - (68,625.00) 

Past service cost - - 

Expense recognised in the statement in profit and loss 696,927.00 482,798.00 

 

C. Defined benefit obligations 

i. Actuarial assumptions 

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages). 

 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 

Discount rate 6.30% 6.50% 

Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00% 

For first 2 years 5.00% 5.00% 

Thereafter 5.00% 5.00% 

Mortality rate 
Indian Assured lives Mortality (2012- 

14) Ultimate (IALM ult). 

 
Weighted average duration of the plan (based on discounted cash flows using mortality, withdrawal rate and interest rate) is 6.07 years 

ii. Sensitivity analysis 

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, 

would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below. 
 

 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

Discount rate (1.0% movement) 60,539.00 (66,513.00) (82,369.00) 74,793.00 

Future salary growth (1.0% movement) (54,498.00) 50,602.00 62,907.00 (67,941.00) 

Withdrawal rate (1.0% movement) (3,940.00) 4,286.00 6,425.00 (5,881.00) 
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Note - 29  Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of intimation received from the suppliers 

regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. There are overdue amounts payable to 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006, as at the reporting 

date or anytime during the year, Amount is outstanding because of pending Reconciliation of ledgers due to rate overcharged in bills and 

hence no interest has been paid or payable. 

 
Particulars 

As at 31 March, 
2021 

As at 31 March, 
2020 

(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.) 

(1) Dues remaining unpaid   

Principal  - 

Interest - - 

(2) Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amount of payment 
  

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year   

Principal paid beyond the appointed date - - 

Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act - - 

(3) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payments made beyond the 

appointed day during the year 

 
- 

 
- 

(4) Further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 

interest due as above are actually paid to the small enterprises 

 
- 

 
- 

(5) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid - - 

Total - - 

Note - 30 Earnings per share 

Earnings per share (EPS) are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equit y 

shares outstanding during the year, as under: 

Particulars 
31st 

March, 2021 

31st 

March, 2020 

Profit / (Loss) attributable to equity shareholders (in Rs.) (107,348,159) (92,061,993) 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 2,503,100 2,271,319 

Basic/ Diluted Earnings Per Share– Rupees (42.89) (40.53) 

Nominal value per share – Rupees 10 10 

Note - 31 Segment accounting as per Ind AS 108 

The Company Operates only in a Single Segment & hence Segment Reporting as required under Indian Accounting Standard – 108 is not 

applicable. 

Note - 32 The deferred tax asset on account of Depreciation as per the Income Tax Act, and that as per the accounts - to Rs 17,20,590/- 

In view of the continuing losses no further Deferred Tax Asset is created in view of uncertainty about its ultimate recovery. 

Note - 33 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped to conform to current year grouping. 

 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

For M/s M.S Mandlecha & Co EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 

Chartered Accountants 

 

 
Mayur Suresh Mandlecha 

Proprietor 

 Chetan Mehta 

Director 

Rajesh Loya 

Director 

Manoj Patade 

Company Secretary 

Membership No. 124248 

UDIN: 21124248AAAADT2019 

 (DIN:00235911) (DIN:00252470)  

Place: Mumbai 

Dated : 30/06/2021 
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Place: Mumbai 

Dated : 30/06/2021 

  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

If undelivered please return to: 

EMERALD LEISURES LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Apte Amalgamations Limited) 

Reg. Off:- Club Emerald Sports Complex, Plot No. 366/15, Swastik Park, 

Near Mangal Anand Hospital, Chembur, Mumbai - 400 071. 

Tel.: +91 22 2526 5800 · Website: www.apteindia.com 

http://www.apteindia.com/
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